

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 9 JUNE 2010 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, WILTSHIRE COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM.

Present:

Cllr Peter Colmer, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Peter Davis, Cllr Bill Douglas, Cllr Peter Doyle, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton, Cllr Howard Marshall, Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Anthony Trotman (Chairman)

Also Present:

Cllr Sheila Parker

59. Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence.

60. Minutes

Resolved:

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 19 May 2010 as a correct record.

61. **Declarations of Interest**

Cllr Peter Doyle declared a personal interest in respect of the following applications because he was a member of the Cotswold Conservation Board:-

Application No 10/00122/FUL – Agricultural Field, Thickwood, Colerne, Chippenham – Relocation of Field Access

Application No 10/01545/FUL – 4 Church Row, Biddestone, Chippenham – Two Storey Side & Rear Extensions (revision to 09/02266/FUL)

Cllr Doyle stated that he would take part in the debate and vote.

62. Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

63. **Public Participation**

Members of the public addressed the Committee as set out in Minute No 65 below.

64. Planning Appeals

The Committee received a report setting out a schedule of:-

- (i) a schedule of hearings and public inquiries scheduled to be heard between 9 June and 31 December 2010.
- (ii) planning appeal decisions received between 7 & 27 May 2010.

65. Planning Applications

1a <u>10/00399/FUL - Rookery Farm, Seagry, Chippenham - Erection of Two</u> Poultry Houses - Electoral Division Kington

On hearing from the Chairman,

Resolved:

To defer consideration of this application, pending the receipt of further information in respect of the movement of vehicles within the fields to deliver feed and, as a consequence, whether or not there are implications in respect of airborne contamination from the soil if chickens have access to those areas.

1b <u>10/00122/FUL - Agricultural Field, Thickwood, Colerne, Chippenham - Relocation of Field Access - Electoral Division Box & Colerne</u>

The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the main issues in respect of the application.

Members of the Committee then asked technical questions after which they received a statement from Mr Robert Brain, an adjoining landowner, objecting to the proposal.

Cllr Sheila Parker, the local Member, expressed her concern regarding the potential hazards arising from the visibility of the entrance particularly as a result of motorists driving along the adjoining fast road.

After discussion,

Resolved:

To delegate to the Area Development Manager to approve, subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The replacement tree(s) required by this permission are 4 Lime Trees, 3 Beech Trees and 6 Scots Pine Trees; supplied and planted as Heavy Standard; with a girth of 12 – 14 cms.

The new tree(s) shall be established by the end of the 2010-11 planting season. All plant material should comply with the minimum British Standard requirement for tree planting, these being BS3936 (Part 1 & 4), BS4428:1989 Section 7, and BS4043.

The replacement tree(s) shall be sited at or as close to the position of the felled tree(s) as is reasonably practicable.

The replacement tree shall be properly maintained for a period of 10 years. If removed or become damaged or diseased within this period shall be replaced in the next planting season with the same species. If a variation in species is required due to disease, agreement must be sort in writing from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that trees are replaced for the benefit of visual amenity and character which at present exists on site.

3. No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 3998 (Tree Work).

If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to the site for the purpose of the development, until a scheme showing the exact position of protective fencing to enclose all retained trees closest to the new access beyond the outer edge of the overhang of their branches in accordance with British Standard 5837 (2005): Trees in Relation to Construction, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and; the protective fencing has been erected in accordance with the approved details. This fencing shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree adjacent to the new access which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs (a) and (b) above shall have effect until the expiration of five years from the first occupation or the completion of the development, whichever is the later.

REASON: To enable the local planning authority to ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity.

4. No development shall commence on site until the trees on the site which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order have been enclosed by protective fencing, in accordance with British Standard 5837 (2005): Trees in Relation to Construction. Before the fence is erected its type and position shall be approved with the local planning authority and after it has been erected, it shall be maintained for the duration of the works and no vehicle, plant, temporary building or materials, including raising and or, lowering of ground levels, shall be allowed within the protected areas(s).

REASON: To enable the local planning authority to ensure the protection of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity.

5. Any gates shall be set back 4.5 metres from the edge of the carriageway, such gates to open inwards only.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

POLICY: C3

6. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use until the first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of

the carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

POLICY: C3

7. No development shall commence on site until visibility splays have been provided between the edge of the carriageway and a line extending from a point 2 metres back from the edge of the carriageway, measured along the centre line of the access, to the points on the edge of the carriageway 160 metres to the North and 160 metres to the South from the centre of the access in accordance with the approved plans. Such splays shall thereafter be permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision above a height of 900mm above the level of the adjacent carriageway.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

POLICY: C3

8. The access as hereby permitted shall be constructed strictly in accordance with the details included within the arboricultural survey report submitted in support of this application. Thereafter the access shall remain as so constructed.

Reason: In order to ensure that the adjacent trees are not damaged as a result of this development.

POLICY: C3

9. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted precise details of the gate and any means of enclosure on the site shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. Thereafter the gate and means of enclosure shall be constructed and retained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity.

INFORMATIVE

1. This decision relates to documents/plans submitted with the application, listed below. No variation from the approved documents should be made without the prior approval of this Council.

Amendments may require the submission of a further application.

Failure to comply with this advice may lead to enforcement action which may require alterations and/or demolition of any unauthorised

buildings or structures and may also lead to prosecution.

Design and Access Statement, Site location plan received 14.01.10, access layout plan received 20.01.10, replanting scheme plan received 20.5.10, Arboriculturalist's report received 25.5.10

Reason for Decision

This access is considered acceptable given the use of the land and in terms of its impact on highway safety, the trees on the site and visual amenity the proposal complies with NE15, C3, NE14 and NE4 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011.

1c <u>10/01123/LBC - 6 Keynell Court, Yatton Keynell, Chippenham - Internal</u> & External Alterations - Electoral Division By Brook

The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the main issues in respect of the application.

Members of the Committee then asked technical questions after which they received statements from the following members of the public who spoke in favour of the proposal:-

Mrs C Grainger, the applicant Cllr A Parker, representing the Yatton Keynell Parish Council

After discussion,

Resolved:

To refuse Listed Building Consent for the following reason:-

The works proposed, by reason of the detrimental impact on the significant and unbroken roofline would be contrary to the provisions of S. 16 (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Policy HE7 of PPS5.

1d 10/01545/FUL - 4 Church Row, Biddestone, Chippenham - Two Storey Side & Rear Extensions (revision to 09/02266/FUL) - Electoral Division By Brook

The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the main issues in respect of the application. Members of the Committee then asked technical questions after which they received statements from members of the public expressing their views regarding this application as follows:-

Mrs Elaine Warne, the applicant, spoke in favour of the application.

Cllr Timothy Smith, Chairman of the Biddestone Parish Council, set out the Parish Council's objections to the application.

After discussion.

Resolved:

The scale, size and form of the development fails to respect the character of the traditional cottage and therefore does not harmonise with the host dwelling, or the surrounding buildings contrary to policies C3 and H8 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011. The proposal has a severe impact on the area and fails to preserve the character and appearance of the Biddestone Conservation Area contrary to policies NE4 and HE1 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011.

66. **Urgent Items**

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting: 6.00 - 7.10 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115